ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 29, 2016
9:00 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Bill Stoltze, Chair
Senat or John Coghill, Vice Chair
Senat or Charlie Huggi ns

Senator Lesil MQiire

Senator Bill W el echowski

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 12
Proposi ng amendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
relating to the office of attorney general.

- MOVED SJR 12 QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 128
“"An Act establishing August 10 of each year as Alaska WId
Sal non Day. "
- MOVED SCS HB 128(STA) OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SJR 12
SHORT TI TLE. CONST. AM ELECTED ATTORNEY GENERAL
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) STOLTZE

02/ 06/ 15 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 06/ 15 (S) STA, JUD, FIN

03/ 03/ 15 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 03/ 15 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 03/ 15 (S) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 29/ 16 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: HB 128

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- March 29, 2016



SHORT TI TLE: ALASKA W LD SALMON DAY
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) EDGVON

02/ 27/ 15 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

02/ 27/ 15 (H) FSH, RES

03/ 12/ 15 (H) FSH RPT 4DP

03/ 12/ 15 (H) DP: HERRON, FOSTER, M LLETT, STUTES

03/ 12/ 15 (H) FSH AT 10: 00 AM CAPI TOL 120

03/ 12/ 15 (H) Moved HB 128 Qut of Commttee

03/ 12/ 15 (H) M NUTE( FSH)

03/ 25/ 15 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

03/ 25/ 15 (H) Moved HB 128 Qut of Conmittee

03/ 25/ 15 (H) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 27/ 15 (H) RES RPT 8DP

03/ 27/ 15 (H) DP: OLSQN, TARR, SEATON, JOHNSON,
JOSEPHSON, HERRON, TALERI CO NAGEAK

03/ 31/ 15 (H) TRANSM TTED TO (S)

03/ 31/ 15 (H) VERSI ON: HB 128

04/ 01/ 15 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

04/ 01/ 15 (S) STA

03/ 29/ 16 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

STUART THOWPSON, representing hinself
Wasi |l a, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SIR 12.

LAURA BONNER, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SIR 12.

KRI STI NA ANDREW St af f

Represent ati ve Bryce Edgnon

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded an overvi ew of HB 128.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
9:00: 37 AM
CHAIR BILL STO.TZE called the Senate State Affairs Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 9:00 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Coghill, Huggins, and Chair Stoltze.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 29, 2016



SJR 12- CONST. AM ELECTED ATTORNEY GENERAL

9:01: 36 AM

CHAI R STOLTZE announced the consideration of SJR 12. He noted
that the resolution was heard during the previous session and
public testinony was |eft open.

SENATOR COGHILL remarked that electing an attorney general was
sonething that the people of Al aska could and should decide. He
said he was in agreenent with the forward notion on electing an
attorney general and noted that the Ilegislation had been
proposed in the past by Republicans and Denocrats alike. He
declared that the state has a very strong gubernatorial office,
but remarked that quite often a tension exists between an
advocate for the people of Alaska and an advocate for the
governor. He said his understanding was that under the Al aska
Constitution, the attorney general would be both an advocate for
the people of Alaska as well as the governor. He renarked that
tensions had clearly occurred in the past between the genera

popul ati on and what the governor wanted. He opined that electing
an attorney general was one good way of a check and bal ance, a
concept that the governnment was built upon. He summarized that
he supported SJR 12 and noted that the 21st Legislature
initially proposed voting for an attorney general.

9:03: 27 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE shared a quote from Novenber 7, 1955 by Senator
Wl liam Egan of Valdez, territorial senator and chairman of the
Constitutional Convention as follows:

| am in favor of a strong executive branch of
government in order that the people mght be able to
place the finger of responsibility wthout buck-
passing. There should be a mninmum of other elected
officials. One office | feel should npbst certainly
remain elective is that of state attorney general. It
would seem to ne that this would provide a safeguard
against a strong chief executive usurping the powers
of his office.

He noted that the attorney general was elected during
territorial days.

He remarked that Governor Egan was certainly a visionary given
that he was the state's first governor. He remarked that
Governor Egan certainly believed in a strong executive branch
and opined that a strong executive branch has largely served

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 29, 2016



Alaska well. He said as one of the state's founders, Governor
Egan predicted many of the things that did happen, but added
that he did not know if Governor Egan's position changed when he
was appoi nted attorney general.

SENATOR COCGHI LL asserted that one of the things that people felt
very strongly about was being able to have their voice. He
remarked that voting for an attorney general may place the
position into a political area, but electing an attorney general
was nore about the people of Al aska getting their voice. He said
hi s experience throughout the years has been that the office of
the attorney general has been highly political based on what
governors want. He said SJR 12 may be a better approach to find
out what the people of Al aska want.

9:05:21 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI j oi ned the comm ttee neeting.

CHAI R STOLTZE announced that the commttee would hear public
testi nony.

9: 06: 36 AM

STUART  THOVPSON, representing hi nmsel f, Vasi | | a, Al aska,
testified in opposition of SIJIR 12. He said there was no need to
reinvent the wheel and suggested that the materials reviewed by
the framers during the Constitutional Convention be |ooked at
first. He sunmarized that having the people vote was a very
standard idea, but noted that he was concerned as to what
happens if the attorney general position was nade an elected
office and its effect on people trying to get el ected.

9:08: 29 AM
SENATOR MCCGUI RE joined the commttee neeting.

9:10: 34 AM
At ease.

9:10: 58 AM
CHAIR STOLTZE call ed the commttee back to order

9:11:31 AM

LAURA BONNER, representing herself, Anchorage, Al aska, stated
that she opposed SJR 12 for the foll ow ng reasons: renoval would
require a recall, current confirmation process provided a nore
t horough vetting process, politicizing the attorney general
position nmay result in legal positions being swayed by public
pressure, and a possible issue due to canpaign contributions.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- March 29, 2016



She noted that running for office costs a |lot of nobney. She set
forth that she preferred the arns-length distance from the
political process for the selection of the attorney general.

9:13: 57 AM

SENATOR MCGUI RE noted that she has heard previous testinony that
the idea of electing an attorney general wuld be nore
political. She noted that a governor was politically elected and
asked how the act of a governor selecting the attorney general
was not political.

9:15: 00 AM

M5. BONNER concurred that the governor selecting the attorney
general was political. She specified that the Legislature has
its own legal counsel and the governor should have a close
relationship with the attorney general as his or her own
counsel. She said she was nostly concerned about canpaign
contributions and how an attorney general may be swayed, just as
j udges shoul d never be elected as well.

SENATOR MCGUI RE replied that M. Bonner's argunment held weight
where having an attorney general and governor on opposite
phi | osophical or political positions would not be desired. She
opined that she was concerned that Al aska's attorney generals
have been acting less as the attorney general and nore as the
| egal counsel for the governor. She asked if M. Bonner would
consider allow ng a governor to have their own | egal counsel

M5. BONNNER replied that Senator MQuire's proposal would cost
the state nore and she remai ned opposed to SJR 12.

9:18: 33 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE cl osed public testinony on SJR 12.

He related that in the past, constitutional anendnents have had
a standard $1500 fiscal note for election panphlet printing. He
revealed that the resolution's fiscal note was zeroed out and
the adm nistration stated that they would absorb the cost. He
remarked that he did not mnd if the resolution proceeded to
Senate Finance with a zero fiscal note, but pointed out that the
procedure was a change in policy within the adm ni strati on.

SENATOR MCGUI RE asked Chair Stoltze if he had considered putting
| anguage in the election panphlet that said the governor was
entitled to |egal counsel on his/her cabinet that could replace
anot her cabi net position.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 29, 2016



9:20: 00 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE replied that he thought the governor has all of
the ability to hire |legal counsel and the act was probably being
done al r eady.

SENATOR MCQUI RE responded that she would not hold the resolution
up, but added that she would continue to contenplate the topic.

CHAI R STOLTZE pointed out that the next commttee of assignnent
for SJR 12 was Senate Judiciary and remarked that he wel coned
Senator McQ@uire to do what she liked as Chair for the commttee.
He admitted that SJR 12 had a deliberative journey, but noted
that only 20 days remained in the session. He pointed out that
hearing the resolution was delayed due to the commttee's
deference to larger bills. He said Senator McQuire's proposition
was a good discussion point that had to be fleshed out and
formalized. He reiterated that he thought the governor was
currently entitled to | egal counsel.

SENATOR MCGUI RE replied that she considers the nunber one
conplaint would be from Alaskans saying that electing an
attorney general would be too political and that the governor
should be entitled to |legal counsel. She asked if Chair Stoltze
had | ooked at other joint resolutions that were further along in
the process. She remarked that SJR 12 addressed | egislation that
was ripe for consideration and she was troubled that the
resolution was so late in the session com ng forward.

9:22:28 AM

CHAI R STOLTZE noted that the House's version had 18 or 20 co-
sponsors and that a |lot of support was present in both bodies.
He conceded that getting two-thirds vote in both bodies was
always a big hurdle. He facetiously remarked that he was gl ad
that there were no politics in the attorney general's position
that the current attorney general was not a major contributor to
the governor, was not the governor's business partner, and was
not a political operative in the governor's canpaign. He
declared that the attorney general was his friend and the
information he previously recited was factual.

SENATOR HUGGE NS remarked that Chair Stoltze's coment was a good
point. He noted that a district attorney based in None, June
Stein, was recently fired by the governor and added that the
attorney general was unaware of the firing. He asked if an
el ected attorney general would have changed the dynam c where
the governor fires a district attorney.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 29, 2016



CHAI R STOLTZE responded that what Senator Huggins pointed out
woul d be an enabling statute as well. He surm sed that creating
a third constitutional officer would put the attorney general on
par with the |ieutenant governor and governor. He detailed that
the attorney general would have the sane constitutional powers
and autonony that both the |ieutenant governor and governor
have. He specified that a constitutional officer could not be
fired or hired.

9:25:18 AM

SENATOR HUGE NS noved to report SJR 12, [29-LS0095\W, from
committee with individual recommendations and attached fi scal
not e.

9:25: 25 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced that hearing no objection, SIJR 12 noved
out of commttee.

9: 25: 46 AM
At ease

HB 128- ALASKA W LD SALMON DAY

9:27:28 AM
CHAIR STOLTZE called the commttee back to order and announced
t he consi derati on of HB 128.

9:27:40 AM

KRI STINA ANDREW Staff, Representative Bryce Edgnon, Al aska
State Legislature, Juneau, Al aska, read the sponsor statenent
for HB 128 as foll ows:

Al askans prize wld salnmon. No other of our fish plays
such a prevalent role in our lives and no other is so
nouri shing and appetizing. According to a survey
conducted during the summer of 2011, 96 percent of
Al askans feel that salnon is essential to their way of
life.

Sal non subsi stence fishing has sustained Al aska Native
people for thousands of years. Recreational fishing
for salnon is a lifelong pursuit and passion for urban
and rural residents alike, along with nmany visitors to
our state. Commercial salnon fishing has been a
mai nstay industry in Alaska for nore than a hundred
years.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- March 29, 2016



By establishing August 10th as Alaska WId Sal non Day,

HB 128 will encourage the celebration of these Al aska
pastines, professions, and ways of Ilife. Alaska WId
Salnon Day will also provide opportunities to pronote
our wild sal non' s del i ci ousness, purity, and

heal t hful ness to visitors from across the country and
around the worl d.

Prior to introducing this bill, our office has
consulted with people involved in the Al aska seafood
mar keting industry, the Alaska restaurant and tourism
industries, and even representatives from Al aska's
airlines, and they all agree that Alaska WId Sal non
Day can create endless opportunities to nmke sal non
| overs out of countless visitors to Al aska.

W are confident in upcom ng support from the Al aska
Travel |Industry Association, Visit Alaska, the Al aska
Seafood Marketing Institute (ASM), the United
Fi shermen of Al aska, and Al aska Airlines.

9:29:40 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE asked why August 10th was chosen as the day to
cel ebrate Al aska WId Sal non Day.

M5. ANDREW answered that the intent was to select a day that was
in the mdst of the tourism season. She explained that July was
crowded with state holidays and early August was chosen.

CHAI R STOLTZE suggested that July 10th m ght be nore appropriate
because the date coincided with the start of the Kenai-Kasil of
Personal Use Sal non Fi shery.

V5. ANDREW poi nted out that July 9th was Al aska Fl ag Day.

SENATOR MCGUI RE stated that she supported Alaska WId Sal non
Day. She said she had two questions, the first was the status on
U.S. Senator Lisa Mrkowski's challenge for the U S Food and
Drug Adnministration (FDA) to rule on genetically nodified
met hods for farnmed sal non. Second, she asked what the sponsor
envisioned for activities that would take place on Al aska WId
Sal nron Day. She inquired if local comunity councils would come
up with their own ideas and how woul d children be invol ved.

M5. ANDREW replied that she did not have an answer regarding a
FDA ruling on farnmed salnon. She addressed Alaska WIld Sal non

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 29, 2016



Day and explained that the intent was to establish a day that
could be celebrated by the state, private industry, comunities,
and famlies. She opined that HB 128 would be liken to a
birthday party for salnon that would be celebrated with cook-
offs and nerchandise. She said HB 128 would let Alaskans and
visitors know that August 10th was a day to celebrate the
bel oved sal non.

9:32: 50 AM

SENATOR MCGUI RE recounted that the Legislature in the past had
grown tired of created new "days." She opined that "days" had
nerit and her intent was to consider what the "days" were. She
suggested that Alaska WIld Salnmon Day address a commerci al
elemrent where the <cruise ship and tourism industries get
involved as was done with the Iditarod. She added that an
educational elenment for children be integrated as well during
the final nonth of school. She opined that children should |earn
about "wild versus farmed" and why wild salnon was inmportant in
one's diet.

M5. ANDREW revealed that the bill's original draft nmentioned the
educati onal conponent. She concurred that both pronotion and
education should be explored for Al aska WId Sal nron Day.

CHAIR STOLTZE remarked that HB 128 identified salnon in both
formal and less formal terns. He noted that Chinook was
identified as "king." He asked what provenance was used in
deci ding on nanes for specific sal non species.

M5. ANDREW replied that there was not nuch behind choosing the
word "king" and offered that the name could be changed to
" Chi nook. "

CHAI R STOLTZE stated that his intent was to provide consi stency.

M5. ANDREW noted that a previous commttee debated "chum versus
"keta," but chum was chosen.

CHAI R STOLTZE reveal ed that "keta" was considered for marketing
pur poses.

9:36: 31 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS suggested that Al aska WIld Sal nron Day be thought
of in a broader sense where fishery shortages were addressed as
well. He opined that a broader-context approach would bring
attention to wild salnon's plight.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -9- March 29, 2016



9:39: 15 AM
CHAIR STOLTZ announced that he would offer an anendnment to
change "king" to "Chinook" for consistency's sake.

9:39:32 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL objected for discussion purposes. He noted that
he was alnbst an adult before he knew king salnon had a
di fferent nanme because on the Yukon River, "kings" were what the
particular salnmon was called. He suggested that if the bill's
intent had an educational conponent, that "known as" Dbe
i ncorporated to provide colloquial salnmon species names in order
to avoi d confusion.

CHAI R STOLTZE announced that he would w thdraw his anmendnent and
offered a conceptual amendnent to draft the formal nane and in
parenthesis indicate the common usage. He noted that "chum' or
"dog" salnon was changed to "keta" for narketing purposes. He
asked Ms. Andrew if she preferred "keta" or "dog."

M5. ANDREW replied that she had not heard the word "keta" unti
she worked for the Legislature. She stated that she preferred
"chum or "dog" sal non.

CHAIR STOLTZE stated that both would be used. He reveal ed that
he has been on the Alaska Seafood Mrketing Institute's (ASM)
board of directors for 10 years and noted that ASM nade a
concerted effort to market keta sal non versus dog sal non

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI shared that he had reviewed the Al aska
Department of Fish and Ganme's (ADFG website and pointed out
that ADFG identified salnmon as: king, coho, sockeye, chum and
pink. He added that ADFG noted salnon's other names in
parent hesis as well.

CHAI R STOLTZE replied that ADFG interchangeably used fornmal and
common nanes. He pointed out that the Legislature put noney in
t he budget for "Chinook" studies and "Chinook" enhancenent. He
added that fishernen refer to the "sockeye" stanp and not the
"red" stanp.

9:42: 25 AM

SENATOR MCGQUIRE stated that she supported Chair Stoltze's
conceptual anmendnent because the change addressed both sal non
education and marketing. She suggested that the commttee agree
on the scientific and commonly used nanes.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 10- March 29, 2016



CHAIR STOLTZE asked if Representative Edgnon's office had any
obj ections to expandi ng sal nron nanmes for educational purposes.

M5. ANDREW replied that she personally liked the idea of
including the names for salnon, but noted that she could not
answer for Representative Edgnon. She remarked that she did not
antici pate an objection from Representative Edgnon.

CHAIR STOLTZE commented that he would not bow at the altar of
Fish and Gane. He stated that he would nmke the "executive
decision" to nove forward with his anmendnent and renarked that
he thought Senator W el echowski woul d concur.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI  opined that no one would read the
resol ution, but people would cel ebrate Alaska WIld Sal nron Day by
what ever nane the sal nron were call ed

SENATOR MCGUI RE stated that her hope was the anmendment would
inspire Representative Edgnon's office to think of educationa
and marketing ideas to celebrate Alaska WId Sal non Day.

9:45: 55 AM
CHAIR STOLTZE restated his notion and detailed Conceptual
Amendnent 1 as foll ows:

CONCEPTUAL AMENDVENT 1

Line 6 will read: Chinook (king), sockeye (red), coho
(silver), chum (dog/keta), and pink (hunpy).

9:46: 31 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE noved Conceptual Amendnent 1. He announced that
hearing no objection, the amendnment was adopt ed.

He referenced data from 2015 and asserted that over 36,000
Al askan househol ds benefited from the "Al askan resident only"
per sonal -use Kenai -Kasilof and Chitina fisheries. He stated that
he could not think of a nore unique fishery that benefited from
the wild bounty of Al aska's sal non.

9:48: 25 AM

SENATOR COGHILL noved to report HB 128, as anended from
committee wth individual recomendations and attached zero
fiscal note.

9:48: 35 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- March 29, 2016



CHAIR STOLTZE announced that hearing no objection, SCS HB
128(STA) is reported fromcommttee.

9:49:29 AM

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee,
Chair Stoltze adjourned the Senate State Affairs Commttee at
9:49 a.m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- March 29, 2016



